
 

Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Melanie Carr Tel:  
or e-mail  

Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk 
OFFICIAL 

 
Agenda 

Notice of a public meeting of 

Richmond Area Constituency Committee 

  

To: Councillors Alyson Baker, Caroline Dickinson, 
Bridget Fortune, Kevin Foster, Bryn Griffiths, Tom Jones, 
Carl Les, Heather Moorhouse, Stuart Parsons, 
Yvonne Peacock (Chair), Karin Sedgwick, 
Angus Thompson, Malcolm Warne, Steve Watson, 
David Webster, John Weighell OBE, Annabel Wilkinson 
and Peter Wilkinson (Vice-Chair). 

Date: Wednesday, 22nd March 2023 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Brierley Room, Northallerton, DL7 8AD 

 
This meeting will be held using video conferencing with a live broadcast to the Council’s YouTube 
site.  The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 lapsed as of 7 
May 2021.  Any formal decisions that the Committee needs to make that are legally binding will be 
made in consultation with by the Chief Executive Officer using his emergency delegated powers, 
taking into account the recommendations of the Committee.    
 
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link - 
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings    Recordings of previous live broadcast meetings are also 
available there. 

Business 
 
1.   Minutes of the Meeting held on 23 November 2023 

 
(Pages 3 - 6) 

2.   Apologies & Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3.   Public Questions or Statements  
 Members of the public may ask questions or make statements at this meeting if they 

have given notice and provided the text to Melanie Carr of Democratic Services (contact 
details below) no later than midday on Friday 17 March 2023. Each speaker should limit 
themselves to 3 minutes on any item.  Members of the public who have given notice will 
be invited to speak: 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/


 

 
OFFICIAL 

 at this point in the meeting if their questions/statements relate to matters which are 
not otherwise on the Agenda (subject to an overall time limit of 30 minutes); 

 when the relevant Agenda item is being considered if they wish to speak on a matter 
which is on the Agenda for this meeting. 

 
4.   Stronger Communities Annual Report 2022-23 

 
(Pages 7 - 16) 

5.   Appointment to Outside Body 
 

(Pages 17 - 18) 

6.   Verbal Update on Northallerton Infrastructure and Development Project 
 

7.   Draft Work Programme 2023-24 
 

 

8.   Other business which the Chairman agrees should be considered as a matter of 
urgency because of special circumstances. 

 
Contact Details  
Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Melanie Carr Tel: 01609 533849 or e-mail: 
Melanie.carr1@northyorks.gov.uk 
Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk 
 
 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive 
(Legal and Democratic Services) 
 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
 
14 March 2023 

Page 2

mailto:Melanie.carr1@northyorks.gov.uk
http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/


 

 
OFFICIAL 

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

Richmond (Yorks) Area Constituency Committee 
 
Minutes of the remote meeting held on Wednesday, 23rd November, 2022 commencing at 10.00 
am. 
 
County Councillor Yvonne Peacock in the Chair. Plus County Councillors Alyson Baker, 
Caroline Dickinson, Bridget Fortune, Kevin Foster, Bryn Griffiths, Carl Les, Heather Moorhouse, 
Karin Sedgwick, Malcolm Warne and Annabel Wilkinson. 
 
Officers present: Mark Ashton, Jayne Charlton, Andrew Dixon, Howard Emmett, Amanda 

Newbold, Matthew Robinson and Jane Le Sage. 
 
Apologies: Angus Thompson and John Weighell OBE.   . 
 

 
Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book 

 

 
20 Minutes of the Meeting held on 5 September 2022 

 
Resolved –  
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2022, having been printed and 
circulated, be taken as read and confirmed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 
 

21 Apologies & Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Yvonne Peacock declared a non-prejudicial interest in Agenda item 4, as the 
owner of a private hire company that provided school transport. 
 
There were no other declarations of interest. 
 
 

22 Public Questions or Statements 
 
There were no public questions or statements. 
 
 

23 YorBus Pilot Update 
 
Considered – A report provided by Andrew Clarke, Public and Community Transport 
Manager giving an update on the ongoing Yorbus Pilot. 
 
Andrew Clarke introduced the report, which outlined the service and provided a 
performance analysis for 2021/22, which included passenger data and feedback on the 
associated key performance indicators.  He also confirmed that the pilot period had been 
extended for a second year up to 30 June 2023. 
 
Whilst some concern was expressed about the cost of running the service, Members 
welcomed its introduction, recognising its benefit to smaller communities.  They also noted: 

 The steady increase in use of the service and that it was attracting more young people 
than other subsidised bus services. 

 Customer satisfaction was above the expected level. 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 
OFFICIAL 

 The introduction of a pre-booking option and the impact it was having on journey 
availability 

 The increase in fares as of August 2022. 
 The reasons for use i.e., travelling to doctors/hospital, and for shopping and socialising. 
 Its favourable comparison with other digital demand responsive services. 
 The ongoing work to identify additional future funding options and options for an 

extended roll out to other parts of the county. 
 

Members suggested the service could be used to provide vital access to work and 
education for young people living in rural areas.  
 
The Chair thanked the officer for the update, and it was  
 
Resolved – That the update be noted. 
 
 

24 Update on the Emergency Plans 
 
Considered – A update on community resilience and emergency planning provided by 
Matthew Robinson -Head of Resilience & Emergencies. 
 
Matthew Robinson provided a brief overview of the benefits of having local community 
emergency plans in place to provide support in dealing with the first 48 hours following an 
incident.   
 
He also provided an overview of how Councillors could help local communities to introduce 
an Emergency Plan, help during an incident, and after an incident through the assessment 
of a community’s reaction. 
 
Members recognised the risk associated with a reliance on wi-fi as a result of the switch 
from analogue to digital telephony.  They also noted that any existing emergency plans 
would need updating to remove District and Borough Council contacts in preparation for 
vesting day. They also noted the use of the locality fund by some members to support 
emergency planning work in their divisions e.g. for the purchasing of generators. 
 
Members suggested a crib sheet with telephone numbers for key officers/service teams and 
external partners, would be helpful for all members.  As would some literature to use to 
promote the benefits of having an emergency plan to small community groups.  
 
The Chair thanked the officer for his report and it was  
 
Resolved – that the report be noted. 
 
 

25 North Northallerton Bridge Update 
 
Considered – An update report on North Northallerton Bridge, informing Members of the 
ongoing progress on its delivery.  
 
Area Highways Manager, Jayne Charlton, presented the update report, and confirmed that 
subject to weather conditions, the bridge was to be open to the public from mid December 
2022 onwards.  It was noted that pedestrian access could not be provided sooner due to a 
manufacturing issue which had held up the installation of the lighting columns. 
 
Councillor Heather Moorhouse requested information on highways related issues affecting 
climate change and requested that a report on CO2 emissions be brought to a future 
meeting. 
 
Resolved – That the update report be noted. Page 4



 

 
OFFICIAL 

 
 

26 Annual Schools Educational Achievement & Finance Report 
 
Considered - A detailed and wide-ranging report introduced by Mark Ashton, Strategic 
Planning Officer, providing information on: 

 The no of schools across the area and their status; 
 School standards and attainment; 
 Exclusions; 
 Special Education Needs; 
 Elective Home Education; 
 Schools Finance; 
 Local school place planning issues; 
 
Members welcomed the report and noted: 

 The good Ofsted outcomes. 
 Falling school numbers had been the catalyst for the Rural Commission. 
 The introduction of new and affordable housing in rural villages would bring more 

children to those areas supporting the sustainability of rural schools. 
 The increase in exclusions at both primary and secondary schools. 
 The numbers of pupils in elective home education - a large proportion were working 

well with EHE parent groups in place and EHE advisors in all localities monitoring those 
schools with higher EHE numbers and the quality of the education being provided. 

 The impact of rising energy costs on school budgets (110% for electricity and up to 
350% for gas). 

 The importance of liaising with partners in the NHS on young people’s mental health 
issues. 

 The work of the strategic planning team e.g. monitoring the preferences of parents 
understanding the local issues affecting future pupil numbers at specific schools such 
as Catterick school. 
 

The Chair thanked the officers for the report and it was 
 
Resolved – That the annual update report be noted. 
 
 

27 Work Programme 
 
Considered - A report presenting the committee’s draft work programme for the municipal 
year 2022-23. 
 
Melanie Carr, Principal Democratic Services & Scrutiny Officer introduced the committee’s 
work programme and asked Members to review it taking into account the outcome of 
discussions on previous agenda items and any other developments taking place across the 
area. 
 
It was agreed that the Chair would work with the supporting officer to update the draft work 
programme ahead of the Committee’s next meeting. 
 
Resolved – That the work programme be noted. 
 
 

The meeting concluded at 11.38 am. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

RICHMOND AREA CONSTITUENCY COMMITTEE  
 

22 MARCH 2023 
 

Stronger Communities Update  
 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 

 
To provide Members with an update on the Stronger Communities Programme and an 
overview of progress made in the Richmond Constituency area.   

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 Despite the ever-changing landscape of the pandemic over the past 12 months, the 

community support infrastructure through the Community Support Organisation (CSO) 
network has remained largely in place since March 2020.  As we moved into recovery, a 
minority of CSOs wound down or scaled back their pandemic response activities.  A 
significant number have however continued to work with the programme on supporting 
communities with the challenges they face in relation to cost of living and winter pressures.  
This has been alongside exploring how the successful CSO model could be built upon and 
developed further to support the health, wellbeing and prevention agenda, and wider 
community resilience in localities, through the Community Anchor Organisation (CAO) 
model concept.   

 
2.2 In addition to this work, the programme has also been able to resume pre-pandemic 

projects and has taken the lead role on a number of new countywide programmes.  
 
2.3 A number of new national initiatives have been launched over the past 12 months 

particularly around alleviating the cost of living pressures being felt by families and 
residents on low incomes. Stronger Communities are leading on a number of these 
programmes and work in partnership with others within the Council and externally.    

  
3.0 Community Support Organisations (CSOs) & Community Response 
 
3.1 The work of the CSOs has shifted focus in 2022/23, moving from pandemic response to 

recovery. Instead of supporting people who were self-isolating or shielding, their efforts 
have been on building confidence and independence and helping to remove some of the 
dependencies that emerged during the pandemic. This has included activities such as 
supported shopping trips, accompanied walks, social events and support groups and 
activities. 

 
3.2 In acknowledgement of broader community resilience challenges including cost of living 

and winter pressures, the CSOs have been retained until the end of March 2023; continuing 
to work in partnership with NYCC to act as a place based single point of contact for locally 
based support, in collaboration with their volunteers, partners and networks.   

 
3.3 A total of £924,700 has been invested in the CSO infrastructure across the county in 

2022/23; this includes a £22,000 contribution from the Humber and North Yorkshire 
Integrated Care Board (ICB) to support the development and rollout of the Rockwood Frailty 
Toolkit.  A breakdown of CSO investment by geography is outlined below.    

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

 

OFFICIAL 

  
   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
3.4 Future Opportunities for CSOs 

Stronger Communities has also been working alongside the CSOs to identify elements of 
the model that could be retained and developed further to support the wider health, well-
being and prevention, and community resilience agenda.  Following a well-attended 
‘Response to Recovery’ event that took place in May 2022 for those organisations that had 
undertaken the CSO role, followed by the ‘Learning Together and Co-Creation’ day in early 
November, the development of a Community Anchor Organisation network across North 
Yorkshire has been progressed.  This is building on the successful CSO model, and further 
exploring the role that locally rooted, place based organisations can play in building 
resilience in communities. 
 

3.5 In February 2023, as part of it’s established ‘Achieve Together’ Investment Programme, 
Stronger Communities opened a new opportunity to establish a Community Anchor model 
for North Yorkshire.  Grants of £15,000 a year (for up to 3 years) will be made available 
from April 2023 for place rooted organisations, based in principal service towns or centres, 
who are able to serve a wider hinterland.  This investment supports the core aims of the 
wider Stronger Communities Programme which include: 

 Prevention and reducing health inequalities 

 Community resilience 

 Social regeneration  
 
3.6 After gathering insight from other local authorities and community development 

programmes and gaining insight from voluntary and community sector organisations 
(including CSOs), a number of characteristics and activities which we would hope to see in 
a Community Anchor Organisation have been developed.  This encompasses: 
 
Characteristics 

 Crucial to the place and the community in which it is based. 

 A voice for local people. 

 Collaborative, open and encouraging of other contributions. 

 Proactive with a can-do mindset. 

 Already delivering services. 

 Independent and community led. 

 Financially resilient.  
 

Activities 

 Building local partnerships and alliances to deliver services. 

 Improving physical and mental wellbeing and reducing health inequalities. 

 Regeneration of their communities. 

 Building community resilience. 

District 

No. of 
CSOs Total Value 

Craven 3 £92,000 

Hambleton 4 £138,000 

Harrogate 6 £203,500 

Richmondshire 5 £126,000 

Ryedale 2 £68,000 

Scarborough 3 £173,200 

Selby 3 £124,000 

Total 26 £924,700 

Page 8



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 Improving people’s financial resilience. 
 
3.7 The funding currently being used to support this work is non-recurring and as such, the 

challenge will be to develop financially sustainable options for CAOs in order for them to 
become less dependent on public sector grants and establish diverse income streams – 
which could include earned income through contracts and charging.   
 

3.8 Community Grants 
In addition to the work with CSOs, Stronger Communities has awarded £114,696 in 
Community Grants supporting 109 groups and / or projects to date in 2022/23.  This 
investment has allowed communities and small grass roots groups and organisations to 
recover from the pandemic and to re-establish local events and activities in their 
communities.  A geographical breakdown of the grants awarded is outlined below.  
 

District 
No. of 
Grants 

Total Value 

Craven 8 £10,000 

Hambleton 8 £7,300 

Harrogate 14 £13,990 

Richmondshire 10 £10,000 

Ryedale 15 £14,500 

Scarborough 37 £35,214 

Selby 16 £15,692 

Countywide 1 £8,000 

Total 109 £114,696 

 
3.9 A breakdown of grants awarded in the Richmond Constituency area is attached at 

Appendix A. 
 
4.0 Wider Stronger Communities Programme Work 
 
4.1 The Stronger Communities programme has been able to resume some of its pre-pandemic 

work over the past twelve months; it is also leading on a number of large new national 
programmes.   
 

4.2 The range of activities the team are leading on, or are contributing to, is broad and varied: 

 Holiday Activities and Food Programme for free school meal eligible children 
(Department of Education funded) 

 Household Support Fund - awards to low-income households (Department of Work 
and Pensions funded) 

 Homes for Ukraine Programme (Department for Levelling up Housing and 
Communities) 

 Wellbeing and Prevention investment – Stay Healthy, Independent and Connected 

 Digital Inclusion 

 Cost of living 

 UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 

 Mental health programmes (NHS) 

 Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) 
 
 

Page 9



 

 

OFFICIAL 

4.3 Holiday Activities and Food Programme 
 Stronger Communities continue to lead on the delivery of this programme, which was 

launched with the branding of FEAST (Food, Entertainment, Arts & Sport Together) in 
partnership with Children and Young People’s Service (CYPS) and the voluntary and 
community sector.  Coordination of the programme has been undertaken by North 
Yorkshire Together who in conjunction with a network of locally placed clubs and 
community organisations, deliver a range of enriching activities over holiday periods.  
 

4.4 The new Holiday Activities and Food Coordinator is now in post and is working with North 
Yorkshire Together partners, as well as colleagues in CYPS, Stronger Communities and 
Public Health to develop the programme further with a particular emphasis on providing a 
wraparound service for families, its nutrition and healthy food offer, building stronger 
relationships with schools, and increasing the number of teenagers engaging with the 
programme. 
 

4.5 Household Support Fund 
In the last 6 months, Stronger Communities have continued to administer the Department 
for Work and Pensions (DWP) funded Household Support Fund.   
 

4.6 The third phase of the scheme aimed to support those most in need with significantly rising 
living costs between October 2022 and March 2023, particularly focussing on those who 
missed out on national government cost of living support.  In line with the expenditure 
guidelines and the agreed eligibility framework developed in partnership with the seven 
District and Borough Councils, 23,395 eligible households across North Yorkshire have 
received a direct award in the form of a shopping voucher in January 2023.  This 
encompassed eligible families, pensioners and working age adult households, as well as 
those who missed out on other forms of national Cost of Living support.  In addition to this, 
supplementary funding was awarded to North Yorkshire Local Assistance Fund (NYLAF), 
Warm and Well, and 16 food providers across the County.  
 

4.7 Household Support Fund will continue from 1 April 2023 for a further 12 months; guidance 
for the scheme has been received and work will commence on how this will be deployed 
shortly.  

   
4.8 Homes for Ukraine Programme 

Following the launch of the national Homes for Ukraine programme, officers from the 
Stronger Communities team have continued to lead on North Yorkshire’s multi-agency 
approach to ensuring arrangements are in place for host families (sponsors) are approved 
(home and welfare checks) and procedures are in place to distribute the government 
funding for sponsors and guests.  The approach also supports the many local groups who 
have set up across the county to help welcome and support the Ukrainian refugees with 
things such as language lessons, social events and peer support. 

 
4.9 The number of Ukrainian guests residing in North Yorkshire, through the Homes for Ukraine 

sponsorship programme was approximately 838 at the end of Q3. In addition, 346 guests, 
who initially arrived in North Yorkshire, have either moved into private rental 
accommodation, to another Local Authority area, or returned to Ukraine, making a total of 
1184 arrivals since March 2022.  Of the guests who have moved on from their sponsor, 78 
groups, or 191 individuals are now living in rental properties within North Yorkshire.  

 
4.10 The government has recently announced a number of updates to the scheme; this includes 

an extension to the maximum sponsorship term from 12 to 24 months, an increase to the 
thank you payment once guests have been in the UK for 12 months, and additional funding 
to acquire housing and support for guests to move into their own homes and reduce the risk 
of homelessness.  

Page 10



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 4.11 Wellbeing and Prevention – Stay Healthy, Independent & Connected 

 The Stronger Communities team have continued to support colleagues in Targeted 
Prevention (Health and Adult Services) to develop options for future investment in well-
being and prevention, learning from the place-based pilots operating in Craven and Selby.  
The Stay Healthy, Independent and Connected Grants scheme was launched in late 2022, 
with new providers starting work in their localities on 1 April 2023. 

 
4.12 Digital Inclusion 
 The digital buddies and champions programme delivered in partnership with Citizens 

Online, libraries, Living Well and community volunteers has proved a vital resource during 
the pandemic helping people to access online services and stay connected to friends and 
families. This has been delivered in tandem with the recycling of ICT equipment and 
devices project Reboot North Yorkshire.  Awareness of Reboot North Yorkshire continues 
to grow, with an increased number of organisations and services referring their 
beneficiaries into the scheme, particularly those who are socially isolated, or those in need 
of a device to access training or education.   

 
4.13 Cost of living - Food Insecurity 
 Following the Council’s investment of a Defra grant in 2020/21 for a range of community 

projects that help combat food and fuel insecurity arising out of the pandemic; additional 
funding was made available to deliver the Food for the Future programme, aiming to embed 
local sustainable food support options, which also support beneficiaries to build their levels 
of confidence and independence.  An additional 44 have also been made available to food 
banks and / or providers of free or low-cost food through the three rounds of HSF.  

 
4.14 The food insecurity research and insight work continues to progress well in conjunction with 

City of York Council (CYC), with the report expected in Spring 2023.   This broadly 
encompasses the following areas:   

 Developing and utilising an evidence base of interventions including associated 
outcomes.  

 Building our understanding of the realities faced by food providers, the unmet needs, 
the real-life outcomes, and thoughts about sustainability /viability. 

 Developing a clearer map of provision across York & North Yorkshire and gaining a 
feel for possible gaps in areas / or models. 

 Innovating / experimenting with an approach that involved people with lived experience.  
 
The team continues to work closely with the Public Health Healthier Lives, Community and 
Economy team who are looking to bring together a range of organisations in the food sector 
to establish a food system framework and ultimately a food partnership to address the 
immediate to long term challenges presented. Joint work on exploring the impact of Cost of 
Living on Health Outcomes will also commence in Spring 2023.   
 

4.9 Broader Cost of Living work 
 In conjunction with internal and external partners and coordinated by Stronger 

Communities, the cost-of-living support page on the NYCC website has been updated and 
reconfigured to provide as comprehensive a picture as possible.  This encompasses links to 
more local level sources of information, including the District and Borough Councils and 
Community Support Organisations (CSOs), as well as detailing information on Warm 
Spaces, and support available for community and voluntary groups wishing to tackle cost of 
living challenges in their communities.   
 

Page 11



 

 

OFFICIAL 

The programme has also supported the development of the NYCC Cost of Living 
Communications Campaign utilising a variety of tools. This includes the development of a 
range of social media assets and an A5 leaflet that has been made available in hard copy 
and digitally, which will drive people to the updated cost of living page on the website, their 
local CSO, and potentially to NYCC’s Customer Service Centre by telephone as an 
alternative.   
 

 4.10 UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 
 As part of the government’s Levelling Up agenda the Council submitted its proposals for its 

allocated UKSPF funding, which have now been approved. There is a strong emphasis 
within the criteria for UKSPF on place shaping, community empowerment, engagement and 
strengthening the voluntary and community sector, and Stronger Communities are taking 
the lead role in the delivery of the Communities and Place strand. An advisory group is in 
place made up of public and voluntary sector partners and the year one allocations have 
been signed off with contracts being prepared. 

 
4.11 Mental health programmes (NHS) 

 The Stronger Communities Programme has worked in partnership with colleagues in Public 
Health and the NHS to deliver a range of community led mental health projects since 2019. 
These include grass roots suicide prevention programmes and other specialist mental 
health services.  As part of the national Community Mental Health Transformation 
programme, Stronger Communities continue to work in partnership with the NHS to 
transform mental health services for people with a serious mental illness through building 
capacity within communities and the voluntary sector. The approach includes NHS financial 
investment, managed by Stronger Communities, working with four place based multi-
agency partnerships to develop and/or pilot new community -based services and projects 
through grant funding to voluntary organisations and community groups with the over-
arching aim of enabling people with a serious mental illness to live well in their 
communities.  

 
4.12 Children and Young People 
 In conjunction with Children and Young People Service (CYPS), the Stronger 

Communities team continues to work with Early Help to deliver their Get Going grants 
scheme that seeks to grow community capacity by working alongside and with our 
communities to stimulate, support and develop activities that enable children, young 
people and their families to be happy, healthy and achieving.  
 

4.13 Capacity Building 
 The Stronger Communities Programme has continued to strengthen local community 

assets and infrastructure; this has included encouraging relationships and collaborations 
between voluntary and community sector organisations as well as stabilising, and / or 
building capacity within them if required.  The impact of the pandemic on income and 
capacity within the sector, together with concerns in relation to rising fuel costs is resulting 
in concerns about their long-term viability and sustainability. Stronger Communities 
continues to work with colleagues such as Community First Yorkshire, The Two Ridings 
Foundation, the Lottery and other partners to identify issues and concerns and develop joint 
responses.   
 

5.0 Planning for the future  
 

5.1 Independent Evaluation 
 The Stronger Communities Programme is subject to a 5-year independent evaluation, 

conducted by Skyblue Research; evaluation of the CSOs has been encompassed within 
this, alongside continuing to develop our ten-year strategy, People, Place and Power.   

 

Page 12



 

 

OFFICIAL 

5.2 The Learning Review Evaluation (2018 – 2022) highlighted a number of key achievements 
of the programme.  Some of the headlines include: 

 

 1,100 community projects supported in over 200 communities in North Yorkshire 
since 2018.  This rises to 1,415 projects since the programme’s inception in 2015.   

 Over 600 Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) organisations have 
received financial and / or relational support from the programme. 

 An estimated 100,000 benefitted from the programme between 2015 and 2020, with 
60,000 benefitting in 2020/21. 

 £3.45million of external funds have been secured as a result of Stronger 
Communities organisational development investment in to VCSEs or place based 
collaborations.  

 
5.3 Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) 

The Stronger Communities team is involved in a number of work-streams to support the 
formation of the new unitary council. Stronger Communities also delivered elements of the 
Let’s Talk campaign in partnership with Borough and District Councils between September 
and December 2022.  

 
6.0 Local Area Information 
 
6.1 The Richmond constituency area is currently served by seven CSOs, with the current 

agreements ending at the end of March 2023. Each organisation is focussed on supporting 
the wellbeing and independence of their beneficiaries, meaning a large reduction in the 
pandemic-related support provided previously, such as shopping and prescription delivery. 
The organisations are as follows: 

 

 Hambleton Community Action (covering Northallerton and Bedale) 

 Stokesley and District Community Care Association 

 The Bridge (covering Richmond and Catterick) 

 Colburn Hub and Café  

 Leyburn Arts and Community Centre 

 The Upper Dales Community Partnership 

 Reeth and District Community Transport 
  
6.2 As referenced in Section 4.6, the new SHIC grants will be delivered in the Richmond 

constituency area through a new partnership model involving a combination of place-based 
organisations (some of which are currently acting as CSOs), as well as specialist support 
organisations. Through this model all communities will have access to specialist advice and 
guidance as well as an opportunity to make local social connections.  

 
6.3 The Community Mental Health Transformation programme, led by Tees Esk and Wear 

Valleys NHS Foundation Trust, is supported by a Hambleton and Richmondshire Task and 
Finish Group.  In addition to supporting the group through the management of a grants 
programme, Stronger Communities is working alongside a range of partners to consider 
how to streamline clients’ experience of accessing mental health support, ensuring co-
production underpins the transformative approach.  A number of workshops have taken 
place throughout the year involving those with lived experience, the VCSE and specialist 
medical and social care professionals. 

 
7.0 Recommendations 
 
7.1 It is recommended that Members note the content of this report. 

 

Page 13



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Report Authors 
Lucy Moss-Blundell, Stronger Communities Delivery Manager (Richmondshire) 
Adele Wilson-Hope, Stronger Communities Delivery Manager (Hambleton)  
Marie-Ann Jackson, Head of Stronger Communities 
 
9 March 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A – Breakdown of Community Grants Awarded  
 
 

District Organisation Name Project  Value 

Richmondshire Yorkshire Energy 
Doctor 

Cost of living support 1000 

Page 14



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Richmondshire The Wensleydale 
Chorus 

Production cost support 1000 

Richondshire Richmond Refugee 
Support Group 

Refugee integration 
activities 

1000 

Richmondshire Leyburn Jazz Festival Music event 2022 1000 

Richmondshire Colburn Reunion Event contribution 1000 

Richmondshire Colburn Catterick 
Richond Fijian 
Community 

Community Event 1000 

Richmondshire Racing Welfare Supporting retired racing 
community  

1000 

Richmondshire Spouse Force CIC Customer Relationship 
Management system 

1000 

Richmondshire Clervaux Trust Ltd Knit and Natter group 1000 

Richmondshire Richmond Town 
Council 

Lady Serena Park 
development 

1000 

Hambleton Yorkshire Energy 
Doctor 

Cost of living support 1000 

Hambleton POSCH Parent carer support 
(H&R) 

1000 

Hambleton Romanby Scouts Squirrels Start Up 1000 

Hambleton Appleton Wisk Art & 
Craft group 

Supplies to re-start group 300 

Hambleton Great Ayton Methodist 
Chruch 

Warm Welcome 1000 

Hambleton Hambleton Community 
Action 

Rural Transport 
Research 

1000 

Hambleton Easingwold Community 
Library 

Story Telling Project 1000 

Hambleton Little 1s (Zion Church) Resources/equipment 1000 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

North Yorkshire County Council  
  

Richmond Area Constituency Committee  
  

22 March 2023  
  

Appointments to Outside Bodies  

 
Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) 

  

  
1.0  

  
Purpose of the Report  

1.1  
  

To enable appointments to Committees and Outside Bodies to be considered.  

  

2.0   John Dakyn's Education Charity at Kirby Hill – Trustee Vacancy 

 

2.1  There is currently a vacancy for a Trustee on the John Dakyn’s Education Charity, following 
the recent resignation of Mr J A Cowie.   
 

2.2 This is a Category 3 outside body appointment.  County Councillor Angus Thompson as the 
local Member, is invited to confirm his nominee for the vacancy at this meeting. Nominees 
are expected to be a member of the local community but may be the local Member. Once 
seconded, Area Constituency Committee Members are asked to vote to approve the 
appointment. 
 

2.3 Once the appointment has been made, Democratic Services will forward the contact details 
(i.e. postal address, email address and phone number) for the appointed nominee to the 
Secretary of the outside body. 

  
2.4 The decision to appoint to a category 3 outside body is an Executive function which has 

been delegated to the relevant Area Constituency Committee.  As such, the decision to 
appoint must be published within 2 days of being made and is subject to the Council’s call-
in procedures. 

  

3.0   Recommendation  

3.1  
  

That the Richmond Area Constituency Committee appoint the nominee for the vacancy, 
nominated by the local Member as the County Council’s appointee on the John Dakyn's 
Education Charity, to serve until a replacement is appointed. 
 

  

Barry Khan  
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)  
County Hall  
Northallerton  

 

13 March 2023  

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Richmond ACC Work Programme 2023-24 

Wednesday 22 March 2023 @ 10am 

Stronger Communities Annual Report Marie Ann Jackson & Team 

Appointment to Outside Body  

North Northallerton Infrastructure and 
Development project 

Verbal update will be provided by James Kennedy 

Draft Work Programme 2023-24 To consider the draft Work Programme for 2023-24  

Monday 12 June 2023 @ 10am 

CO2 Emissions Update An update on highways related issues affecting climate change 

Yorkshire Ambulance Service  Update on response times 

Local Flood Risk Strategy 2022-27 Update on the implementation of the new Strategy 

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work Programme 

Monday 18 September 2023 @ 10am 

Development of the Catterick Integrated 
Care Campus  

Verbal update on the development of the CICC from Lisa Pope - CCG Deputy Director of 
Primary Care, Community Services and Integration (CICC programme lead) 

Yorkshire Dales National Park Update 
Verbal update on Yorkshire Dales National Park emerging Local Plan  - Peter Stockton, 
Head of Sustainable Development 

YorBus Pilot Update Digital Demand Responsive Bus Service – Andy Clarke, Integrated Passenger Transport 

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work Programme 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Monday 20 November 2023 @ 10am 

Emergency Plans Update on the Emergency Plans in place across the Constituency area – Joe 
Rushbrook, Resilience & Emergency Officer 

Schools Educational Achievement & 
Finance 

Annual Update - Andrew Dixon, Strategic Planning Manager, Education & Skills & 
colleagues 

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work Programme 

  

Monday 15 January 2024 @ 10am Informal TEAMs Meeting 

Budget Proposals 2023 - 2024 Gary Fielding to present 

Monday 18 March 2024 @ 10am 

Draft Work Programme 2024-25 To consider the Committee’s draft Work Programme for the coming municipal year 

  

  

Issues identified for future work programme 

Supported Living Update on implementation of review 

Lorry Driver parking Follow up to consider how issue is being addressed following earlier consideration 

Friary and Friarage Hospitals To consider updates on these facilities. 

Provision of a Northallerton Relief Road To consider any progress on the provision of a Relief Road. 

P
age 20



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Safety on the Constituency Area’s roads A Joint report by Highways and Public Health to consider data relating to incidents that 
have occurred on the Constituency Area’s roads and the work being carried out to 
address these. 

Mental Health A report on how mental health issues are being addressed in the area. 

Delayed Transfers of Care Further review of work by Health and Social Care to reduce Delayed Transfers of Care 
following consultation – linked to the Care and Independence Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Small Schools Review of educational outcomes at small schools – linked to the Young People’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Healthy Child Programme An update on the position regarding the Healthy Child Programme following the end of 
the current contract and the development of a new provision. 

Health Issues relating to e-cigarettes To consider further national guidance in relation to health concerns in relation to the use 
of e-cigarettes 

Parking Charges Overview of potential changes in light of LGR 

 
 
 
 
 
 
You can get to this request here:SharePoint - self service (northyorks.gov.uk)Using the option 'I want to request something new, a change, or access'Then 

selecting 'Submit Request' 

P
age 21

http://northyorks.gov.uk/


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Meeting held on 23 November 2023
	4 Stronger Communities Annual Report 2022-23
	5 Appointment to Outside Body
	7 Draft Work Programme 2023-24

